Public Document Pack

w WIRRAL

Licensing Act 2003 Committee

Contact Officer: Anne Beauchamp

Tel: 0151 691 8608

e-mail: annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk
AGENDA

1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or
prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and,
if so, to declare them and state what they are.

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2)

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2010, which
were received or approved by the Council.

3. DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (Pages 3 - 28)

4, ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack Agenda ltem 2

LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 25 May 2010

Present: Councillor S Taylor (Chair)
Councillors  WJ Davies D Knowles
J Salter P Williams
H Smith E Boult
R Wilkins G Davies
S Niblock G Ellis
C Povall D McCubbin

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to consider whether they had any personal or prejudicial
interests in connection with any items on the agenda and, if so, to declare them and
state what they were. No such declarations were made.

MINUTES

The Committee was requested to receive the minutes of the meeting held on 9
November, 2009.

Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November, 2009 be
approved as a correct record.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

The Director of Law, HR and Asset Management reported upon the need to appoint a
Chair of the Licensing Act Committee 2003 for the municipal year 2010/2011.

It was moved by Councillor Don McCubbin and seconded by Councillor Gerry Ellis
that Councillor Sue Taylor be appointed Chair of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee
for the current municipal year.

The Director of Law, HR and Asset Management indicated that the Chair could only
be appointed for this meeting, as the Chair for the Municipal Year would have to be
ratified by full Council and this could be done at the next Council meeting on 12 July
2010.

The Committee’s wishes were however noted that Councillor Sue Taylor be
appointed as Chair for the current municipal year.

Resolved - That Councillor Sue Taylor be appointed Chair for this meeting of
the Licensing Act 2003 Committee.

Page 1



APPOINTMENT OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEES

The Director of Law, HR and Asset Management requested that the Committee
appoint a Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee for 2010/11.

Resolved -

(1) That each Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee meeting be comprised of
three members and one reserve member to be drawn from the pool of fifteen
Committee members as follows:

Councillors Sue Taylor, Eddie Boult, Gerry Ellis, Denis Knowles, Don
McCubbin, Cherry Povall, Bill Davies, George Davies, Denise Roberts, John
Salter, Harry Smith, Stuart Whittingham, Steve Niblock, Bob Wilkins and Pat
Williams.

(2) That the Chairs of the Sub-Committees be appointed on the day of each
meeting.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR
The Head of Licensing notified Members of two training sessions to be held on 24
June in Manchester Town Hall and 13 July in Warrington Civic Centre. Details of

these training sessions would be emailed to all Members of the Committee to enable
officers to secure places for those who wished to attend.

Page 2



1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Agenda ltem 3

WIRRAL COUNCIL
LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE - 28 JULY 2010
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to seek Members approval of the Draft Statement of
Licensing Policy in order that it may be circulated for consultation.

BACKGROUND

Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires a Licensing Authority to prepare and
publish a statement of its Licensing Policy every three years.

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy was first published in January 2005 and
was reviewed and published in December 2007. The Policy is now due to be reviewed
and published no later than December 2010.

Amendments have been made to the current Statement of Licensing Policy in
accordance with updated Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
and a revised Best Practice Framework produced by the Local Authorities Coordinators
for Regulatory Services (LACORS). Additional information is also provided relating to the
Temporary Event Notice procedure and the Licence Review process and an appendix
provides a list of useful contacts. The draft also takes account of changes in legislation,
including: the smoking restrictions that apply to premises and the change that provides
that Members may make representations and request that the Licensing Authority review
a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate.

The Draft Statement of Licensing Policy attached in Appendix 1 will be circulated to the
following consultees. Amendments made to the Policy have been highlighted.

The Chief Officer of Merseyside Police

The Chief Fire Officer

The Chief Officer of Mersey Regional Ambulance Service
The Director of Technical Services

Local Safeguarding Children Board

Wirral Trading Standards

Environmental Health (Health & Safety and Pollution Control)
Residents of Wirral, through random selection and Local Area Forums
National Breweries who have premises located in Wirral
British Beer & Pub Assn, North West Region

Musicians Union

Guild of Master Victuallers

Federation of Licensed Victuallers Associations

Cinema Exhibitors Association

British Retail Consortium

British Institute of Innkeeping

Bar, Entertainment and Dance Association

Association of Licensed Multiple Ratabsés:g



3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising out of this report.
STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

There are no staffing implications arising out of this report.
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

The draft policy contains a clause (15.1) recognising the need to eliminate unlawful
discrimination and promote equality of opportunities..

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

Effective control of Licensing Legislation can assist in raising standards and improve the
perception of community safety.

LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS
There are no Local Agenda 21 implications arising out of this report.
PLANNING IMPLICATIONS

Section 10 of the draft policy refers to planning and building control issues and licensed
premises.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS

There are no anti-poverty implications arising out of this report.

SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS

There are no social inclusion implications arising out of this report.

LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS

The report affects the whole Borough.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

There are no background papers.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The purpose of this report is to seek Members approval of the Draft Statement of

Licensing Policy in order that it may be circulated for consultation.

Bill Norman
Director of Law, HR and Asset Management

This report was prepared by Margare‘:%ag'qell who can be contacted on 691 8606.



APPENDIX 1

» WIRRAL

Draft
Statement of
Licensing Policy

July 2010

Wirral Licensing Authority
Town Hall

Brighton Street

Wallasey

CH44 8ED

0151 691 8043




Page 6



10

11

12

13

14

15

CONTENTS

Background

Executive Summary

Purpose and Scope of the Licensing Policy
Licensing Objectives
Conditions

Enforcement

Cumulative Impact

Licensing Hours

Integrated Strategies

Planning and Building Control
Live Music, Dancing & Theatre
Temporary Event Notices

Licence Reviews

Administration Exercise & Delegation of Functions

Promotion of Racial Equality

Page 7

Page No.

10
11
11
12
12
12
13

14



Page 8



LIST OF APPENDICES

Page No.

Appendix 1 Delegation of Functions 15

Appendix 2  List of Contacts 17

Page 9



Page 10



1.1

BACKGROUND

Wirral Borough Council is situated in the County of Merseyside, which contains no
district Councils, but 5 metropolitan councils: Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton, St Helens
and Wirral. The Council area has a population of 310,200 (ONS 2007 midyear
population estimates) making it the second largest after Liverpool in the County in
terms of population. In terms of area it is the largest in Merseyside, covering 60.1
square miles. The Borough is mainly urban in outlook, with 32.85 square miles
(54.66% of the borough) covered in Residential, Industrial or Commercial buildings.

[—] Regeneration Priority Area

[T ] Primarily Residential Areas

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey
I Rural/Greenbelt Areas on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright
- Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
| Other Urban/Developed Areas Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council. Licence Number LA 100019803. Published 2006

The key provided identifies the urban / rural areas as well as regeneration priority
areas.

Page 11



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This policy sets out how the Licensing Authority will carry out its function in respect of
individual applications made under the terms of the Licensing Act 2003.

The Licensing Authority aims to provide a transparent balanced, consistent,
proportionate and fair licensing service for all service users including applicants,
licence holders, interested parties and responsible authorities.

Holders of authorisations be that a Premises Licence, Club Premises Certificate,
Temporary Event Notice or Personal Licence will be expected to work proactively and
positively with the Licensing Authority, Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties
to promote the Licensing Objectives.

The policy aims to ensure a consistent approach to licensing within Wirral, promoting
fairness and proportionality. The policy is to assist Officers and Members of the
Licensing Act 2003 Committee in reaching decisions on particular applications, setting
out those matters that will normally be taken into account.

The policy seeks to provide clarity for applicants and residents to enable them to
understand the objectives being promoted and matters that will be considered in
determination of the applications made under The Licensing Act 2003.

The policy will cover all applications for Premises Licences, Club Premises
Certificates, notification of temporary events, together with applications for renewals,
transfers and variations. The policy also provides details of the review process that
provides a key protection for the community where problems associated with the
licensing objectives are occurring after the grant or variation of a Premises Licence or
Club Premises Certificate.

Wirral Borough Council is the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 (the
Act) and works closely with the Responsible Authorities, the licence trade, local
residents, local businesses and Ward Councillors to deliver the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority takes its responsibility and the Act seriously and actively
works with Merseyside Police and Trading Standards to combat alcohol related crime
and disorder and tackle the sale of alcohol to underage persons. Further details of this
work can be identified in Wirral’s Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy.

The Licensing Authority works closely with residents to listen to their concerns and
where appropriate act as a mediator between licence holders and residents to
address issues, in particular relating to the prevention of public nuisance. We also
work with licence holders both directly and through Pub Watch, to seek compliance
with licence conditions and encourage discussion between all relevant parties to
promote the Licensing Objectives. This work is undertaken in recognition that
enforcement action will be taken when necessary and appropriate in accordance with
the Authority’s Enforcement Policy.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF THE LICENSING POLICY

The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority publish a Statement of
Licensing Policy that sets out the principles the Licensing Authority will generally apply
to promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions on applications made
under the Act. In addition the Policy seeks to provide clarity for applicants and
residents to enable them to understand the objectives being promoted and the matters

Page 12



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

that will be considered in determination of licences. This Statement of Licensing Policy
has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Act and having regard to
the Guidance issued under Section 182.

The Policy relates to all those activities identified as falling within the provisions of the
Act, namely:

e Retail sale of alcohol

e  Supply of alcohol to club members

e Provision of ‘regulated entertainment’ - to the public, to club members or with a
view to profit

A performance of a play

An exhibition of a film

An indoor sporting event

Boxing or wrestling entertainment

A performance of live music

Any playing of recorded music

A performance of dance

Provision of facilities for making music

Provision of facilities for dancing

The supply of hot foot and/or drink from any premises between 11.00 pm and
5.00 am

In accordance with Section 5(3) of the 2003 Act, the policy has been prepared in
consultation with:

The Chief Officer of Police for the area

The Fire and Rescue Authority for the area

Persons/Bodies representative of local holders of premises licences
Persons/Bodies representative of local holders of club certificates
Persons/Bodies representative of local holders of personal licences
Persons/Bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

In carrying out its various licensing functions the Licensing Authority will promote the
Licensing Objectives which are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

These objectives will be considered of equal importance and paramount at all times.

In addition to the Licensing Objectives, this Authority is also bound by Section 17 of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1988 which requires the Authority to do all that it
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder within the locality. The Licensing
Authority will work in partnership with the Police and other relevant agencies and local
residents towards the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.

Licensing is about the control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary
events within the terms of the 2003 Act.

Page;!3



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

In determining a licence application the overriding principle adopted by the Licensing
Authority will be to determine each application on its individual merits.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority expects individual licence holders, new applicants and
temporary event organisers to regularly review their arrangements in addressing crime
and disorder issues pertinent to their particular licensable activities and/or premises.
Information and advice can be obtained from regulatory agencies, business network
groups and other sources. The Licensing Authority also encourages local residents
and other businesses to discuss issues of concern directly with individual businesses
or, to contact the Police and Licensing Service if they believe that a particular licensed
premises is failing to achieve this objective.

The Authority will through its Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships, devise and
help deliver strategies to tackle the misuse of alcohol, identified in the Cabinet Office’s
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy as being a precursor to crime and anti-social
behaviour. The Licensing Authority expects existing licence holders, new applicants
and the organisers of temporary events, to be able to demonstrate the measures they
use, or propose to adopt, to prevent and actively discourage underage retail and
hospitality sales/supply of alcohol. In general, conditions will reflect local crime
prevention strategies.

The risk assessment approach remains fundamental. Licence holders and applicants
are strongly recommended to work closely with the Police and Licensing Service in
particular, in bringing into effect appropriate control measures to either overcome
established or potential problems. A combination of short and longer-term strategies
may need to be deployed by the licence holder to sustain and promote the prevention
of crime and disorder.

The Licensing Authority encourages relevant businesses to participate in local Pub
Watch schemes or similar forums where it is set up, and where this helps secure
and/or promotes the Licensing Objective(s).

The Licensing Authority will encourage small businesses to network locally with other
businesses and to seek advice from regulatory agencies.

4.10 The Council has specific duties under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

4.11

that underpins any control strategy that is employed. The Council will continue to work
in partnership with the Police in addressing crime and disorder issue.

Promotion of Public Safety

Public safety is not defined within the Act, but is concerned with the physical safety of
people, not specifically with public health matters, which are covered by other
legislation such as the Health and Safety at Work etc, Act 1974 and the Regulatory
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

4.12 Applicants and event organisers will be expected to assess not only the physical

environment of the premises (or site) but also operational practices, in order to protect
the safety of members of the public visiting the site, those who are permanently
employed in the business, those who are engaged in running an event or anyone else
that could be affected by site activities.

Page 14



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

4.20

Holders of Premises Licences, and Club Premises Certificates Certificates, or those
organising temporary events, should interpret safety widely to include freedom from
immediate danger or physical harm, and a sense of personal security e.g. freedom
from personal abuse.

For licensed or certificated premises and for temporary events, public safety must be
kept under review and where changes to operational practices occur, a review of risk
assessment must be undertaken.

Fire safety and means of escape remain an essential consideration to the Licensing
Authority when determining applications. The Licensing Service will work in
partnership with the Fire Authority and other Council departments (e.g. Building
Control and Environmental Health) to ensure that appropriate standards are applied
and maintained. Applicants are encouraged and reminded to consult with all relevant
parties prior to submission.

In the context of providing safe access to licensed premises for disabled members of
the community, the Licensing Authority urges all licensees to familiarise themselves
with The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Public nuisance is not narrowly defined within the context of the Act. The Licensing
Authority will take a broad approach to its meaning. In effect, any nuisance arising
from a licensable activity — ranging from major noise from an outdoor pop concert
affecting a wide area, to a low-level nuisance affecting only a few people (e.g.
vibrations from a poorly mounted extraction duct serving a night café), could be
included.

The Licensing Authority remains sensitive to the expectations and needs of different
parts of the community in respect of leisure and cultural pursuits, and will view
applications accordingly. The Licensing Authority will consider the impact of those
activities on people who have to live, work and sleep within the local vicinity of a
licensed premises.

The Licensing Authority will always consider whether other legislation already
provides sufficient protection of the rights of local people. For example, the
Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Noise Act 1996 and the Antisocial Behaviour
Act 2003 can be utilised to address noise nuisance issues. The Licensing Authority
considers that the potential for public nuisance can be prevented or much reduced by
good design and planning during new or ancillary construction works, and by the
provision of good facilities. This will require appropriate advice at the planning and
development stages of new projects. The Licensing Authority’s Licensing Service and
the Environmental Health Department and other regulatory agencies such as the
Police, should be viewed as being instrumental in this respect. Applicants should
consider carefully the suitability of the premises for the type of activity to be
undertaken, particularly in terms of ventilation, noise breakout and noise/vibration
transmission to adjoining premises.

The Licensing Authority expects licence holders to use their risk assessments and
Operating Schedules to review and, if need be, to make necessary improvements to
the premises, or to operational practices, in order to prevent public nuisance. The
matter of persons congregating in outside areas including beer gardens can cause
disturbance and be a public nuisance to residents living in close proximity to licensed
premises. This congregation may be connected to the manner in which the smoke

Pages!5



4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

free legislation is managed at the premises. The Licensing Authority will expect such
matters to have been demonstratively assessed and addressed in the Operating
Schedule. In cases where there appears to be a likelihood of residents living around
licensed premises being disturbed by customers leaving venues, or there being an
impact on crime and disorder from customers leaving venues, applicants may
consider putting in place a dispersal policy such a policy would set out the steps that
would be put in place to minimise disorder or disturbance that may be caused as
customers leave.

Where the provision of existing legislation proves inadequate or inappropriate for
control purposes, if its discretion is engaged through the submission of
representations the Licensing Authority will consider imposing licence conditions, any
condition deemed appropriate and imposed by the Licensing Authority to promote the
prevention of public nuisance will focus on measures within the direct control of the
licence holder, and designated premises supervisor.

Protection of Children from Harm

The Licensing Authority recognises the Local Safe Guarding Children Board as being
competent to advise on matters relating to the protection of children from harm.

Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable
and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained
to protect children from harm, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of
their premises and events.

The Licensing Authority is committed to tackling the issue of under-age drinking and
has developed a comprehensive package of measures in partnership with other
stakeholders and will seek support from licence holders to implement these measures.

Licensing conditions will usually only restrict access to children in order to protect
those children from harm. Applicants will be expected to pay particular attention to
safety issues within their operating schedule where regulated entertainment is
specially presented for children.

The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences
may be sought, including theatre, cinemas, public houses, concert halls as well as
‘night-clubs’. The Licensing Authority will consider the individual merits of each of
these applications. Examples of premises where restrictions on access to children
may be imposed include:

Where there have been convictions of current staff for serving alcohol to minors
Where there is a known association with drug taking or dealing

Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

Where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or
primary purpose of the services provided at the premises

Page 1§



4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

5.1

5.2

5.3

The options available for limiting access to children can include:

A limit on the hours when children may be present

Age limitations (below 18)

Limitation or exclusions when certain activities are taking place

The requirement to be accompanied by an adult

Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place

The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition which specifically requires
access for children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation
is imposed the issues of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual
licensee or club.

Where children are expected to attend public entertainment, appropriate adult
supervision will be required to control the access and egress of children and to protect
them from harm.

The type of entertainment and the nature of the premises will determine the
appropriate level of adult supervision. If considered appropriate, the Licensing
Authority may require that adult supervisors be subject to a Criminal Records Bureau
check.

Where cinemas are concerned, the Licensing Authority would expect licensees to
impose conditions that children will be restricted from viewing age-restricted films
according to the recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification.
Licensees will be expected to include in their operating schedule arrangements for
restricting children from viewing age restricted films.

CONDITIONS

The Licensing Authority cannot impose conditions unless it has received a relevant
representation from a responsible authority, such as the Police or an Environmental
Health officer or an interested party, such as a local resident, local business or a local
Ward Councillor. The Licensing Authority will determine whether or not a
representation qualifies as a “relevant representation” and therefore whether or not
the representations may be taken into account by the Licensing Authority when it
makes its decision. In determining whether or not a representation is a “relevant”
representation, the Licensing Authority will have regard to Government guidance. The
Licensing Authority then needs to be satisfied that it is necessary to impose conditions
or refuse an application in order to promote one or more of the Licensing Objectives.

The Licensing Authority recognises that all applications should be considered on an
individual basis and any condition attached to such a licence will be tailored to each
individual premises. Standard conditions, other than mandatory conditions, will
therefore be avoided and no condition will be imposed that is disproportionate or
cannot be shown to be necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.
However the Licensing Authority may seek to develop a pool of conditions in line with
the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) Guidance.

Applicants for Premises Licences or Club Premises Certificates or for variations to
such licences or certificates are expected to conduct a thorough risk assessment with
regard to the Licensing Objectives when preparing their applications. The risk

Page,17



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

assessment should cover the premises, events, activities and the customers expected
to attend and will inform any necessary steps to be set out in the operating schedule
to promote the Licensing Objectives. It would be sensible for applicants and clubs to
consult with responsible authorities when operating schedules are being prepared.
This would allow for proper liaison before representations prove necessary. The level
of detail to be provided should be proportional to the scale and nature of the
application to allow Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties to consider
whether the Licensing Objectives are being/can be fully met.

If an applicant volunteers a prohibition or restriction in their operating schedule
because their own risk assessment has determined it is appropriate, such prohibitions
or restrictions will become conditions attached to the licence, or certificate and will be
enforceable.

The Guidance issued under Section 182 provides pools of model conditions at
Annexe D.

Where necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives, the Licensing
Authority will attach conditions in accordance with these model pool of conditions.

Conditions deemed necessary to achieve the Licensing Objectives will be applied
following Relevant Representations. Terms and conditions attached to licences will
be proportionate and will focus on matters that are within the control of individual
licensees and others granted relevant permissions. The focus of these conditions will
be on the direct impact that activities taking place at the licensed premises could have
on persons attending the venue as well as members of the public living, working or
engaged in normal activity in the area concerned and will seek to ensure the
protection of children from harm.

It is recognised by this policy that licensing law is not a mechanism for the general
control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct control
of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or permission
concerned. This policy is able to address such behaviour “in the vicinity” of premises
used for licensable activities. Whether or not incidents can be regarded as “in the
vicinity” of licensed premises or places is ultimately a matter of fact to be determined
by the courts in cases of dispute. The Licensing Authority will primarily focus on the
direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed premises on members of the
public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

The Licensing Authority will work in partnership with the Police and other relevant
agencies to promote the Licensing Objectives and will develop licensing conditions for
individual premises in order to meet these objectives and conditions will be tailored to
the specific premises concerned. Licensing Law is not the primary mechanism for the
general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour once they are beyond the direct
control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, however the Licensing
Authority recognises that it is a key aspect of such control and Licensing Law will
always be part of a holistic approach to the management of the evening and night time
economy in town and city centres.

Other mechanisms available for addressing issues when individuals behave badly
away from licensed premises include:

¢ Planning control

e Town centre initiatives

e The provision of CCTV surve'il_J,ance ir]I wn centres
age



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

e Designation of defined areas within this Authority where alcohol may not be
consumed publicly

e Police enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-social
behaviour including the issuing of fixed penalty notices

e The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk or who are underage

e The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas

e Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed premises or
temporary events on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or excessive
noise emanating from the premises

e The power of the Police, other responsible authority or a local resident or
business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question

ENFORCEMENT

It is essential that Licensed premises are maintained and operated to ensure the
continued promotion of the Licensing Objectives and compliance with the specific
requirements of the Act. The Licensing Authority will monitor premises and take
appropriate enforcement action in line with the Licensing Authority’s Enforcement
Policy. A copy of the Enforcement Policy is available on request.

The Licensing Authority recognises the interests of both citizens and businesses and
will work closely with partners to assist licence holders to comply with the law and the
Licensing Objectives. However, proportionate but firm action will be taken against
those who commit serious offences or consistently break the law.

The Licensing Authority will continue to work with Merseyside Police on joint
inspections of premises to reduce the level of crime and disorder and ensure the
safety of the public. Protocols will continue to be developed to avoid duplication and
ensure the best use of resources to promote the Licensing Objectives.

Protocols continue to be developed in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s
Enforcement Policy and the principles of better regulation. The principles of risk
assessment and targeting will prevail and inspections planned accordingly.

CUMULATIVE IMPACT

Cumulative impact means the potential impact on the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.
Cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the Licensing Objectives
is a proper matter for a Licensing Authority to consider and the Licensing Authority
may adopt a special policy.

The effect of adopting a special policy of this kind is to create a rebuttable
presumption that applications for new premises licences or club premises certificates
or variations that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be
refused, following relevant representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in
their operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or
more of the licensing objectives.

However, a special policy does not relieve responsible authorities or interested parties
of the need to make a relevant representation, referring to information which had been
before the licensing authority when it developed its statement of licensing policy,
before a licensing authority may lawfully consider giving effect to its special policy. If

Pagegl9



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

there are no representations, the licensing authority must grant the application in
terms that are consistent with the operating schedule submitted.

The absence of a special policy does not prevent any responsible authority or
interested party making representations on a new application for the grant of a licence
on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one
or more of the licensing objectives.

It is for any person making such representations to provide evidence to the Licensing
Committee that the addition of the premises concerned would cause the cumulative
impact claimed. When considering such representations, the committee will:

Identify any serious and chronic concern

Identify the area from which problems are arising and the boundaries of that area
Make an assessment of the causes

Consider adopting a policy about future licence applications from that area

The cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives is a matter the Licensing Authority can take into account. This should not,
however, be confused with ‘need’ which relates more to the commercial demand for a
particular type of premises e.g. a public house, restaurant or hotel. The issue of
‘need’ is therefore a matter for planning consideration or for the market to decide and
does not form part of this licensing policy statement.

The Licensing Authority recognises that public houses, ‘night clubs’, restaurants,
theatres, concert halls and cinemas all provide their services of selling alcohol, serving
food and providing entertainment with contrasting styles and characteristics. Proper
regard will therefore be given to these differences and the differing impact they will
have on the local community and each application will be considered on its individual
merits.

LICENSING HOURS

The Licensing Authority recognises that longer licensing hours with regard to the sale
of alcohol are important to ensure that the concentration of customers leaving
premises simultaneously is avoided. This is necessary to reduce the friction at late
night fast food outlets, taxi ranks and private hire offices as well as other sources of
transport that might be a focus of disorder and disturbance. The Licensing Authority
will, however, have regard to the location of the premises in question and the
surrounding area, considering each application on its individual merits.

Fixed trading hours within designated areas will not be set as this could lead to
significant movements of people across boundaries at particular times seeking
premises opening later.

Stricter conditions with regard to noise control will be demanded in certain areas, for
example, premises in close proximity to residential accommodation.

The Licensing Authority will usually permit the sale of alcohol for consumption off
trade premises at any time the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are very
good reasons for restricting these hours, for example, following Police representation
that a particular shop is known to be the focus of disorder and disturbance.

Page 2@



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10.0

10.1

10.2

INTEGRATING STRATEGIES

The Licensing Authority will seek to ensure proper integration with the local Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnership, Planning, Tourism and Cultural Strategies when
dealing with licence applications and through partnership working. The Licensing
Authority will work with other partners such as the Police and the Primary Care Trust
to develop initiatives that support the Licensing Objectives. The following strategies
are examples of such strategies:

Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy

Tourism Strategy

Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership Strategy
Wirral's Partnership Agreement

The Licensing Authority recognises that there are many stakeholders in the leisure
industry covering a wide range of disciplines.

The Licensing Authority shall secure the proper integration of this policy with local
crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism and cultural strategies by:

Liaising and consulting with the Police, Community Safety

Liaising and consulting with the Local Strategic Partnership

Liaising and consulting with the Planning authority

Liaising and consulting with the Trading Standards Team, for example, with
regard to test purchasing codes of practice

Licences issued to premises shall reflect local crime prevention strategies.
Certificates issued to club premises shall reflect local crime prevention strategies and
may include any or all of the requirements listed above.

The Licensing Authority shall have regard to the need to disperse people quickly and
safely from the town centre to avoid concentrations that may produce disorder and
disturbance. The policy shall reflect any protocols agreed between the local police
and other licensing enforcement officers and the need to report to other Council
committees.

PLANNING AND BUILDING CONTROL

Applications for Premises Licences for permanent commercial premises should
normally be from businesses with planning consent for the property concerned.
However, applications for licences may be made before any relevant planning
permission has been sought or granted by the planning authority. The planning and
licensing region involve consideration of different (albeit related) matters. Licensing
considers public nuisance whereas planning considers amenity.

The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen as a
re-run of the planning application process and that there should be a clear separation
of the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Similarly,
the granting by the Licensing Authority of any variation of a licence which involves a
material alteration to a building would not relieve the applicant of the need to apply for
planning permission or building consent.

Page, 21



10.3 There are also circumstances when as a conclusion of planning permission, a terminal

11.0

11.1

12.0

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

13.0

13.1

hour has been set for the use of the premises for commercial purposes. Where these
hours are different to the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the earlier
closing time. Applicants are strongly recommended to consider whether their
application conflicts with a relevant planning permission for a premises. If the
applicant is unsure whether this is the case or where they are aware of such a conflict,
they should contact the planning department. Contact details are provided in
Appendix 2.

LIVE MUSIC, DANCING AND THEATRE

Where possible, the Licensing Authority will encourage and promote live music,
dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the Borough and its communities.
The Licensing Authority will balance carefully the potential for limited disturbance in
particular neighbourhoods against the benefit for a wider area. In determining what
conditions should be attached to licences and certificates as a matter of necessity for
the promotion of the licensing objectives, the Licensing Authority is aware of the need
to avoid measures which deter live music, dancing and theatre by impairing indirect
costs of a disproportionate nature.

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE

A permitted temporary activity is an event lasting for no more than 96 hours where the
number of people attending the event is no more than 499.

Temporary events do not involve the Licensing Authority giving permission for the
event to take place but the Police must be served with the Temporary Event Notice
(TEN). This is a notification procedure in which only the police may intervene to
prevent such an event taking place or to modify the arrangements for such an event.
The Police may only do so where they believe it may undermine the promotion of the
crime prevention licensing objective.

The event organiser must give the Licensing Authority and the police a minimum of 10
clear working days notice. This does not include the application date, the day of the
event, weekends and bank holidays. The Licensing Authority recommends that TEN’s
are received by this Authority and Merseyside Police at least 28 days before the
event, to allow any necessary discussions to take place with the Police.

It is not a requirement for a TEN to be served on other Responsible Authorities,
however the Licensing Authority will notify the Responsible Authorities of all TEN’s
received. In addition Ward Councillors will be made aware of the TEN'S received
relating to the premises in their ward so they are up to date with activities taking place
in their area and are therefore able to respond to enquiries from local residents.

As started in paragraph 12.2 it is only the Police who can object to a TEN and
providing details to other Responsible Authorities and Ward Councillors is purely to
assist them in undertaking their duties.

LICENCE REVIEWS

At any stage following the grant of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate a
Responsible Authority, Interested Party or an elected member of the Licensing
Authority may ask the Licensing Authority to review the Licence or Club Premises
Certificate because of a matter at a premises in connection with any of the four

licensing objectives.
Page 23



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

14.0

14.1

14.2

14.3

Where a person or body is considering making an application for a review they are
advised to contact the licensing office, contact details are provided in Appendix 2. This
is so that an officer may provide some initial feedback on the matter and then if
appropriate attempt to facilitate a meeting or a series of meetings between relevant
persons to discuss the review process and identify any possible solutions.

Applicants for a review should make all efforts to set out their concerns clearly and
ensure that these concerns are relevant to a failure to promote the licensing
objectives.

In considering an application from an interested party the licensing Authority must first
consider whether the applicant is relevant, vexations, frivolous or repetitions.

The promotion of the licensing objectives relies heavily on a partnership between
license holders, authorised persons, interested parties and responsible authorities in
pursuit of common aims. It is important therefore that authorities persons and
responsible authorities give license holders early warnings of their concerns and of the
need for improvement.

The Licensing Authority cannot initiate the review process. The Authority’s role is to
administrate the process and determine its outcome at a hearing where an evidential
basis for the allegations made will need to be submitted.

The Licensing Authority is considering the review may take such of the following
steps:

¢ modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

e the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail (or other licensable activities) from
the scope of the licence;

e removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence

e suspension of the licence.

e revoke the Licence.

The Licensing Authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the
review does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing
objectives.

ADMINISTRATION EXERCISE AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the
Licensing Act 2003 Committee, by a Sub-Committee or, instead, by one or more
officers acting under delegated authority.

The Licensing Authority recognises its responsibilities under the Race Relations Act
1976, as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 in the exercise of its
functions under the 2003 Act.

It is considered that many of the functions will be largely administrative with no

perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency and effectiveness these
will, for the most part, be carried out by officers.

Page 23



14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

15.0

15.1

Where there are relevant representations applications will be dealt with by a
Sub-Committee of the Licensing Authority, as will any application for the Review of a
licence.

The Licensing Authority will expect individual applicants to address the Licensing
Objectives in their operational plan having regard to the type of premises, the
licensable activities to be provided, the operational procedures, the nature of the
location and the needs of the local community.

Applicants will be encouraged to make themselves aware of any relevant planning
and transportation policies, tourism and cultural strategies or local crime prevention
strategies and to have taken these into account, where appropriate when formulating
their operating plan. The Licensing Authority also expects applicants to have regard
to other national strategies and guidance, such as the Alcohol Harm Reduction
Strategy, again where these are relevant.

When determining applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to any
guidance issued by the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS). If
representations are made concerning the potential for limited disturbance in a
particular neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s consideration will be balanced
against the wider benefits to the community.

In the interests of speed, efficiency and cost effectiveness, the Licensing Authority
have determined which decisions and functions should be carried out by the full
Licensing Committee, or delegated to a Sub-Committee or Council officer. Appendix
1 to this statement of policy sets out how the Council will approach and carry out its
different functions.

PROMOTION OF RACIAL EQUALITY

The Licensing Authority recognises that the Race Relations Act 1976 as amended by
the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, places a legal obligation on public
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to
promote equality of opportunities and good relations between persons of different
racial groups. The Licensing Authority will therefore assess the likely impact of the
policy and publish the results of such assessment in accordance with an impact
equality assessment.

Page 24



DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

Matters to be dealt
with

Application for
personal licence

Application for
personal licence
with unspent
convictions

Application for
premises
licence/club
premises certificate

Application for
provisional
statement

Application to vary
premises
licence/club
premises certificate

Application to vary
designated
premises
supervisor

Request to be
removed as
designated
premises
supervisor

Application for
transfer of premises
licence

Application for
interim authorities

Application to
review premises
licence/club
premises certificate

Full Committee

Sub-Committee

If a police objection

All cases

If a relevant

representative
made

If a relevant
representation
made

If a relevant
representation
made

If a police objection

If a police objection

If a police objection

All cases

Page g5

APPENDIX 1

Officers

If no objection
made

If no relevant
representation
made

If no relevant
representation
made

If no relevant
representation
made

All other cases

All cases

All other cases

All other cases



Matters to be dealt Full Committee
with

Decision on
whether a
complaint is
irrelevant frivolous
vexatious, etc.

Decision to object
when local authority
is a consultee and
not the relevant
authority
considering the
application

Determination of a
police objection to a
temporary event
notice

Sub-Committee

All cases

All cases

Page 26

Officers

All cases



LIST OF CONTACTS

APPENDIX 2

Name and Address

Telephone
Number

Email Address

Fax Number

Licensing Authority
Wallasey Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey

CH44 8ED

0151 691 8043

licensing@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8215

Police Licensing Section
Manor Road Police
Station

Manor Road

Wallasey

CH44 1DA

0151 777 2944

A.BCU.Licensing@merseyside.police.uk

0151 777 2939

Environmental Health
Town Hall

Brighton Street
Wallasey

CH44 8ED

0151 691 8318

environmentalhealth@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8444

Planning Authority
Cheshire Lines Building
Canning Street
Birkenhead

CH41 1ND

0151 606 2536

planningapplications@wirral.gov.uk

0151 606 2268

Wirral Area Child
Protection Committee
Hamilton Building
Conway Street
Birkenhead

CH41 4FD

0151 666 4291

N/A

0151 666 4580

Trading Standards
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey

CH44 8ED

0151 691 8020

tradingstandards@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8098

Page,27



Merseyside Fire &
Rescue Service
Wirral District Fire
Safety

The Fire Station
Mill Lane
Wallasey

CH44 5UE

0151 296 4932

WirralAdmin@merseyfire.gov.uk

0151 296 6222

Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 can be obtained from:

Department for Culture
Media and Sport

2-4 Cockspur Street
London

SW1Y 5DH

020 7211 6000

enquiries@culture.gov.uk

N/A

Page 28




	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
	Appendix


